-

L

4\‘01‘-_ Q‘-_‘f‘ \ . . .
“Dr.‘Kenneth Rattray Q.C. (Senior Asst. Attorney General) and with him,

°
<%

.In the Supreme Court of Judicature of Jamaica

-

In PrS%ate and A&miniétration
Sﬁit No. P. 525/1970
h In the Estatg of PrinceSs Nina Aga Khan
aléb known as Nina Dyer, also known as
Nina Sheila Dyer late of the Municipality
of Castagnolé} éwitzerland, gentlewoman, -

- . deceased intestate, .

Harvey DaCosta Q.C. and with him, J. Leo-Rhynie for the Royal Bank

. ' f ’ .
Trust Company Ltd., (Applicant for letters of] Administration de bonis

non) on behalf of William Stanley Aldrich.

N
..
IS

. A’ ) B Al -
§h§ﬁ}§§§Playfair (Crown Counsel) for the Administrator General
N b ' '

~ i
(An applicant for letters of Administration).

. . i

Winston McCalla (Crown Counsel), for the Attorney General

(intérveﬁing on the basis of a claim that the property in Jamaica
) . % k-] . .

® of the deceased is bona vacantia). ' ‘ : .=
. o 5 . , .

1971; April 21, 22

Nov., 22, 23, 24, 25, 26,

" Dece, 1 and May 1972, o . :
o . _ o - o —
S A L e . o \\/,
Parnell, J. This 'is an intercsting casé which raises important 5

points with a strong flavouring of Private Internéticnal-Law.

Learned counsel for the Attorney General, did not take any further‘

v
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part in the proceedings after the second day. The interest of the
Attbrﬂey General was therefore, watched by Dr. Rattray, Both

Mr; DaCosta and Dr. Rattray argued their cases with commendable
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gkill, The preliminary objection raised in the early part of the
proceedings touching the jurisdiction of the Court and which was
not entertained, was ggg?%bility supported by Mr. McCalla before he

made his exist,

I shall state briefly what the substence of the contention
is, The deceased whom I shall hereafter refer to as "Nina Dyer™ or
"Nina" was born in England on February 15, 1930. She died in France

on July 3, 1965 while being domiciled in Switzerland. Nina died

=

intestate leaving a lot of property. Part of that property is in
Jamaica and it consists of personal estate estimated to be of the

-y R

- value of $1,000 and real estate in the parish of Portland and estimated

to be of the value of $100,000.

A T ~ Mr. William Stanley Aldrich, an Englishman who is now in

s
e

his seventy third year claims that Nina was his daughtef lawfully
begotten.with his wife Elsie Edith nee.Rogers now deceased end whom
he darried in London on the 8th Jﬁne,.l923. Mr;. Aldrieh is said to
heve-been a woman without any independent means. Mrs. Aldrich eloéed
with a wealthy Englishmdn Stanley Dyer, in or agout June, 1929f

;~// . df. Dyer had a wife; he was then about 58 years old but he leff his

.-wife to life with Mrs. Aldrich who was then abedt 22.yeafs df‘age,\

and who is described as "very attractive"# Mr., Aldgich discove;ed
'ﬁhere his wife was 2rd he used.to see her. Sexual intercourse
between Mr. Aldrich who was ebout 29 and his wife did qot cease after

she had eloped. Nina was born at a nursing home while Mrs. Aldrich
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was still living with Mr. Dyer. Her birth was registered on the

7th March, 1930, The father is stated in the bitth certificate

to be:

) ' ' , - )
Cw' ."Stanley Hartop Dyer, Ceylom Tea Planter o
of 136, Chatsworth Road, N.W.6" o

-The informant was the said Stanley Hartop Dyer. The name of the

”»
”»

mother is stated thus:

B S T

"Elsie Dyer formerly Rogers."

" If the birth certificate of Nina is to be accepted at its face

.

(“\ value, it would mean thet Mr. Dyer was giving information to the

' Regis;rar of Birth and Deaths that "Elsie Dyer formerly Rogers' was ‘ by

then his lawful wife. But the unchallenged evidence before me is

that up to May, 1954 when Mrs. Aldrich died she and Mr. Aldrich had L;i
. not been divorced., The birth certificate, therefore, is misleading ;
in a material particular, But'the giving of this misleading ; ﬁ

information is understandable, It is a human story which I am (

\

unfolding as simply as I can on the backgrounds of an ghglish scene., j
rd ) .

|

_Certain principles which the Victorian Age had generated on the

conduct of the‘ordinary citizen inlEngland in 1229 - and even as

e e e

far away as in Jamaica - were still in full force and effect. In

due course, I shall go into a few details as I touch certain stagés [
A

of the play. ; . o o . § 

Since the death of Nina, the following events are to be noted:

(1) . On the 13th August, 1965, a Court of competent

juriédiction in Switzerland appointed thred attorneys-at-law | . ? [
- ’ . l ’ &

to be administrators of the estate of the deceased Niha; *
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(2) On a date in October, 1966, the Administrators by

Power of Attorney appointed the Royal Bank Trust Company

(Jam) Ltd., to be the'true and lawful.attorney in Jamaica =--

for the Administrators,"

(3) " In the course of time - the date is not clear -

-

" the Royal Bank Trust Compéhy applied for letters of

A&ministration. in connection with the property of the

'dece&sgd to which I have already referred.

.

(4) On the 5th of April, 1967, letters of Administration

of all the estate in Jamaica which by £aw devolves on the

o

13

- deceased Nina were granted by the Supreme Court to the

applicant (Royal Bank Trust Company) as the Attorney of the

Adnministrators.

"until they shall apply to this Honourable Court

for and obtain a grant to them of Letters of

~ Administration in the estate of the said deceased."

(5 In October, 1966, Mr. Aldrich took out proceedings

in BEngland with a view to hils sécuring:

-

(a) A declaration of the validity of his marriége to.

Nina Dyer's mother and
(b) A declaration of the legitimacy of Nina Dyer.

On the 2kth November, 1967, Ormrod, J granted the prayer

‘in (a) above but dismissed that part of the prayer which sought a

declaration that Nina was legitimate. The ground of the dismissal

is this;

g

Under the Law, the befson sééking the declaration of legitimacy

~
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must'be the petitioner himself. But since Nina was dead (she
being the proper petitioner if she had been alive), her father

<:> could not obtain such a declaration. See Aldrich v. Attorney
General, /196872. W.1.R. 413, In the course of his judgﬁent, the
.learned judge said ghis: |

"y shguld make it élear, however that if this Court

had to decide this issue, i.e. whether Mr, Aldrich

was the father of the late Miss Dyer, ih proceedings

relating to a claim which had to be adjudicated upon

in this Court, the court would do so upon such evidence
(~: as was available,ifor example, in a Shit by Mr. Aldrich

~ claiming assets in this Country." ibid %21, I shall

take a note of this robust stand of Ormrod, J,.

s

(6 In a petition dated the 21st/23rd. March 1968, and filed

in the Swiss Court, Mr. Aldrich oullined the facts of his

P~

case and sought, inter alia, a declaration that:

‘WThe estate of the late Nina byer devolves upon
(:\ , her legal heirs, or rather on her legitimate
/ _ father Mr. William Stanley Aldrich."

There were about 14 respondents named in the petition. The

respondents did not oppose the action but on the contrary, thef

-

-

ad&epted its substance.

.1(7) ' In a judghenﬁ dated 1l4th ﬁévember, 1968, a court of
competént jurisdiction in Switzerland in which Qount“y

: (\// | o Ning was domiciled at the date of her death,'declared aﬁd

pronounced inter aliaj

"Phat the estate of the late Nina Sheila Dyer
devolves upon her legitimate father William o

‘Stanley Aldrich." C

The Court also revoked the Letters of Administration

"....’0.‘..6/
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. (8) On the 3rd. November 1969, Mr. Aldrich, by Power of

_ Administration on the instructions of Mr. Alirich who had to exhibit

':behalf;'he would not be entitled to share in the estate which the

débqased left in damaica and in fact the Attorney General, on behalf

and Property Charges Law, Cap. 166,
The Administrator General and the Attorney General having been

‘made aware of the position, issues are now joined on this question;j

b=
granted on the 13th August, 1965,
For the ti@e'being I ‘shall refer to the competency of the Court
in so far as it relates to-proéee&ings concerniﬁg the.prOperty
of tﬁé-deceased dying intestate and who at the daté of death

was domiciled within the courts jurisdiction.

L4
”~

Attorney, appointed the Royal Bank Trust Company (Jam) Ltd.

‘to be his attorney in Jamaica in respect of the property of
the deceased Nina Dyer.

.

It would appear that when the Trust Company applied for lLetters of

-

all relevant documents in Support of the application, it was obscrved

-

-

that there was evidence which would suggest that Nin, was not
ﬁzawfully begotten.” If she was a bastard, then Mr., Aldrich i

would not he competent to instruct the Trust Company to act on his

of the public, could claim theshole property in default of any law-

ful.parent'or blood relation pursuant to the Ié%estates' Estates

Is William Stanley Aldrich the legitimate father of the deceased
Nina? If this question in this form is a little too pointed or

controversial - the issue can be put into anotner form; namely,

[ -

'is William Stanley Aldrich entitled to any and what part of the

N

estate of the deceased Nina which she 1eft in Jamaica?Z

- 39¢€
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What is before me, therefore, is a notice of motion and in its
amended form, it seeks an order as follows:

"That the said William Stanley Aldrich be
declared to be entitled to the entire estate
of the deceased in Jamaica absolutely and

beneficially."
Before I return to an examination of the evidence which was put

o ~

before me, I should state a féw facts relevant .at this stage;

These are not in dispute. : o
(1) | That the decea;ed Nina Dyer died without aﬁy
husband or children her surviving; .
(2) That #he mother of the deceased}died in May; 1954
. as a“resul;’of car accident,
(3) That Mr. Stanley Dyer, died in ’}eylon.on the 11lth
December, 1945,
: (4) That Mr. Stanley Dyer made a will naming the mother
of Nina as the sole beneficiaryf No mention is made of his
““sm_ . "daughter" Nina Dyer in the will.
(5) That Mrs. Aldrich left a will in.1954. She left most
;_ of her esfate, wﬁich.she inheritéd from.Mr, Dyer, to her
daughter Nina who was her only cﬁild. Mr. Aldrich is not
fa beneficiary under the«will of his wife,
The first two,days.of the hearing were spent in discussing a

preliminary point raised by Dr. Rattray. In the original notice of

: . . Q s ¥
motion, Mr, Aldrich sought at declaration that he may be declared

- \
. \

the legitimate father of the deceased. Dr, Rattraf argued that the

- ¢ourt had no Jjurisdiction to make any such declaration and his

N

reasoning is based on the decision given in England in 1967 in

| eenaeni)
399
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Aldpich v. Attorpey'General to which I have already referred; Thé
objection was not sustained and at this stage I should mention
something which is of practical importance,
(:) , Undér the Intestate's Estates and Property Charges Law, Cap. 166,
K the persons enti?led to share in the distribution of the esta#e

of an intestate are clearly set out. One person mentioned is put

-

thus under Section qa(l) (Iv): =

- nIf thé intestate leaves no issue but one parent,
then subject to thi interest of a surviving
' husband or wife, the residqary estate of the
<;\} , inteétate shall be held in trust for the surviving

father or mother absolutely."

And the At%orney General, acting on behalf of the public, is

ES

allowed to intervene by virtue of Sec. 4 (1)(V1) which states:

"In default of any persoﬁ taking an absolute
‘ interest under the foregoing pr9Pvisions the .
- residuary estate of the intestate shall belong
to the Crown as bona vacantia, and in lieu of

any right to escheat." '

-,

;Es\ It seems tc me that by the very language of the statute,

;any person who claims any interest in the estate of an intestate

must prove his relationship with the deceased. And if he clainms

as a parent (father), he is impliedly, if not expressly saying
that the deceaséd was legitiﬁafe éince under our law - at any

o . rate up to the present time'—‘a féther.of a bastard dying intestate
cannot claim any interest in the estate of the deceased. If thne
front déor.is closeq to Mr. Aldrich, he may get in througﬂ the

'side door and obtain, whether in his favour or against him; the
{

i
very substance of his prayer which formed the basis of the
argument touching the jurisdiction of the Court. Mr. DaCosta

abandoned the froﬁtal assault during the proceedings and sought

L"'OO -.lto..oaoqna;-g/
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leave to amend the notice of motion in the form which is now

before me.

I shall now proceed to examine the evidence in more detail.

The examination will put in stages. The only evidence in the éase
concerning thé issue raised aé to the legitimacy of‘Nina comes

from Mr., Aldrich who came to Jamaica in order that he ma& Sejcfoss-
examined on his affidavit. He wés sﬁbject to a._lengthy and

careful cross-examination by Dr. Rattray. o

(a) Circumstances surrounding the early stages of the

-

liason between Mrs. Aldrich and Mr, Dyer.

After the marriage between Mr. Aldrich and his wife Elsie

-

on the 8th June, 1923, they lived and cohabited continuously until

June, 1929, The couple lived in their house called "Kantara" in

in Caterhan, Surreye. = Among the neighbours of Mr. & Mrs. Aldrich
in Caterham, was a couple Mr, % Mrs, Stanley Dyer. Mr. Dyer aged.

58 lived comfortably in a lovely house., He had his tea pléntation

in Ceylon.

Mr. Aldrich was a working man in 1929. He had to travel.in

the west of England and in Wales in course of his duties and would

be away from home from Monday morning to a Friday evening each week,

His young and attractive wife Elsie would be left alone in the

- house. Mr. Aldrich's standard of living could not be compared with

I

that of Mr, Dyer. What he could not afford to offer his wife! Mr.

Dyer'could shower it in ébundance. It appears that during the

periods of the absence of Mr., Aldrich from.home, a leve affair
, \

between Mrs, Aldrich and the wealthy‘Mr. Dyer had its genesis. And

Mr., Aldrich is going to have a .shock. On day in June, 1929, he

00000;100000010/
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-

retu?ned from one of his business trips to an emgty'housc. His
attracfive wife had.eloped with Mr, Dyer. - Up to this time, ﬁrs;
Aldrich was a loving and affectionate wife. She aﬂd her husband
shafcd the same room and she pérformed ner wifely duties-in every
particular. Buﬁ it appears that precautionary measures were

~being taken by Mr., Aldrich with the co-operation of his wife

-

against having any children, iccoraing to Mr;.Aldrich they could

not afford having a child then., If one were to check on the

economic position of the ordinary working man in England, U.S.A.

-

and in Jamaica say during the period 1929 - 1931, one is able to
understand fully the evidence of Mr. Aldrich that he and his‘wifc
could not“dffor; a child ﬁhep. The Meconomic depression" which
hit certain countries with its attendant éonsequcnces, for example

the collapse of "Wall Street!" New York, in October, 1929 have not

escaped the memory of many to-day who experienced the days of

’

depression,

e (b): Mrs. Aldrich is found in a housec

her pregnancy is disclosed.

After Mr. Aldrich found that his wife had eloped with Mr,
Djer, he went in séarch of them. As a rosult of information
received, he found her infa furnished flat at 136 Chatsworth Road,
Q,W.G, London. Mr. Aldrich persuaded his wife Elsie to return

to 3urrey. She agreed. For two weeks~she‘lived with her husband

~during-which time sexuzl intercourse took place. After two._weceks,

-

L

HMes. Aldrich left the house during the absence of her husband,
. S -~ \

Shelreturned to the furnished flat which Mr. Dyer had provided.

Mr. Aldrich went back to the flat and pleaded with her to return.

’7;'0& 000000000000011/
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This time, however, His persuasion did not_work. But he was abl:
M to persuade her to mect him at "Kantara', Surrey, in London and
<;) ‘ at a housc called "Tarrymore" belonging to Mr, and Mrs. Thomas
Blyth,‘friends én& neighbours of Mr. Ald?ich in Surrcy. .On
several occasions during this periodlscxual intercourse ﬁobk place.
And during this tfying period it Tappears that Mr;‘Aldrich diémissed
tﬁe decision taken during the éarlier period of the marriage that

© they could not afferd a child, I shail quote his own words in

N
{\/} paragraph 10 of his Affidavit dated the 25th March, 1971.
"I was so despérately anxious to get my wife
“back after she left my house that I can remember
consciously trying to have a child in the hope
that this would induce her to return. to me."
‘When he was cross-ékamincd bj Dr. Rattray he reaffirmed his stand.
This is what he said:
(Hj S . . WWhen my wife left me I did feel she would return
T . if we had some tie. I tried to make her
RS
' pregnant " \
In fact Mrs. Aldrich did become pregnant. On an occasion when Mrs.
Aldrich met her husband after she had left his house, she informed
him she was going to have a chiid. And both.of them assumcd that
it was their child. Mr. and Mrs. Aldrich -continued to meet and have
(\) intercourse after Mrs. Aldrich found out that she was pregaant. But

Mrs. Aldrich refused to return to her husband after she became

pregnant, And the reason is given by Mr. Aldrich in para. 11 of his

atfidgvit, ‘ . S 3

"I believe my wife did not accede to my request
to return to me because Mr. Dyer could offer far

‘more financiallsecurity than I dould.”

703 | P -7 4
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Was Mr, Dyer having intercourse with Mrs. Aldrich?
Could he have been the father of the child that Mrs.‘Aldrich
would deliver in due course? During the final addr?;s of
Mr. DaCosta he put forward a view which I must rccord at this
sfage.

_"There is not even evidence that Mrs. Aldrich

and Mr. Dyer had sexual intercourse."
However, Mr, Aldrich in cross-cxamination was realistic. He had
to face the incacapable conclusion in a factual situation.

Q: "Do you believe the association of Mr. Dyer with

your wife was platonic?¥

Az ,a"No,’I could not believe that, I could not
believe she was not on intimate association

with Mr, Dyer when she left me,”
It would be difficult for one to believe that in the circum-
stances under which Mrs. Aldrich left her home fof the flat
provided by Mr. Dyer she would be treate& mercly as an ornament

V‘bxihim. Mr. Dyer was deserting an elderly wife or at apy rate, 2

wife much older than lrs. Aldrich and who, from the evidence, didl

not claim to possess the charm and attraction ‘which the yoﬁnger

-

woman Secmed to have displayed in abuﬁdancé; To sa& that Mrs;
Aldrich would be intimate oﬁly with her young fdonis ahd that she wéuld
- hold at bay her aging Romeo is to carry an argument or a'sugggstion

too far,

But, as T s@all discuss heregfter; the question is not whether Mr.

Dyer could have been the féthér of the child M;s,.ﬁldrich ﬁid

: - : _ _ i
delivér. The question is that even éssuming that Mr. Aldrich and

Mr. Dyer were having intercourse with Mrs. Aldrich at all material

times when she did conceive, has it been shown either on a balance

. . ’ “-Q.QQ’-‘-.IOO13/
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of prdbabilities or in the alternative, beyond reasonable
doubt thait Mr. Aldrich being then the lawful husband, was not in
fact the father of the child Nina?

(¢): Mrs. Aldrich is delivered:

Birth of Nina is registoered:

{Wheﬁ_Mrs. Aldrich_wés about to deliver her child shé was
admitted to a nursing home iﬁ Kensingtbn. 5@0 left the honme
_provided for her by Mr. Dyer for the nursing home. And she 1is
?egiétércd as "Mrs. Dyer"., The child was 6orn on February 15, 1930 .

and it was registered as Nina Sheila Dyer. ﬂpcording to Mr, Aldrich,

" he used to see his wife - and it is clear that Mr. Dycr was not aware

P .

" of these meetings - up to February 1930‘when she went to the

nursing home, However, he did not visit her at the nursing home
et P ‘

Narw

#zefre of "Mrs. Dyer". In answer to the court

A

because she used tue’

Mr. Aldrich said:

. "I did not visit her in the nursing home. I
~ made enquiries about her after she had the

~.raby. I sent her flowers at the nursing hone,"
.:@_IIACégpi this bit of evidence and I do accept it - it would
appear that in ordef not to qause any émbarrassment to.himself or
to‘his wifé, Mr. Aldrich did not visit her during the period >
of confinement. But he did not forget her. In a tangible way -
‘and to.borroQ an American saying - "he said it wifh flowers."’
Mrs. Aldric¥~réturned.to Mr; Dyer ‘with the infant child. At that

stage a2nd to the world at largé - and this is indicated orx the birth
, - :

certificate - Mr, and Mrs. Stunley Hartop Dyer had been blessed with

the gift of a female child named "Nina' Mr, Dyer paid all the

. ...Ooo-.-o-..;o1l"/
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medical expenses of the confinement, Being anxious to see tne child,
Mr. Aldrich paid a visit to the house whére Hr. Dyer and Mrs.

Aldrich were staying. This was a result of a telecphone conversation

L
(D

he had with his wife, A dinner party waé arranged at Mr. Dyer's
housc. Mr. A;drich did.not pay the visit empty-handed. . He took with
hin a "modggt present® for the ba%y in the form éf eithe£ a "teddy
pear" or a - "fluffy aog". - The g;eSGnt.is handed over in the
presence_of Mr. Dyer and Mrs. Aldrich. Mr. Aldrich was pernmitted -
t> use his language.- to handle the baby at this family gatiering.”
'The impression I get from this piecc of unchallenged
evidence is that at this m&&é;:;szfEetlng, thcre was no re-
¢cimination between Mr., Aldrich aﬁd his elderly rival for the

-
~

ecafort and love of.Mrs. Aldrich, After all she a;d prescented onc

of them with a lovely daughter. So-the question of who this

ii2ky one was did not arise then for dutermlnatlon. Mr. Aldrich

#37= the baby another present on a subsequent occasion. This time

*t was a doll. I shall refer to the occasion in due coursec.

-«
X
-

sf5re¢ I proceed to another stage of the storyy I must refer to 2

*® of evidence which shquld be mentioned in this sctting.

L1

After the baby was born, Mr. Aldrich was still anxious

’:441ng that the situation was hopeless, he consulted his

B . . 1 aa N : ' *
% isitors with 2 view to launching divorce proé-edings. One lr.

‘w!

‘#ht a 3ocicitor's elerk went with Mr. Aldrich to 136, Chitsworth
. ) ] \
1

“"4,  Mrs. Aldrich and the baby are scen. The pleasure which

¥he o . . ’ N . ) .
! aliowed on sccing her husband is suddenly changed when thc purnose

- 1is o~
hlﬂ m1551oq£° dlained to her. The JbJGCt was to obtain from

L "a- :::f:::-.,..- J-'ln & .-'ln h_-qd -_wnt:-q_if+.;.“ Aadnl+ane U .
N ) - weccsceel)/

fvt his wife to return t#.him with the baby. She refused his request.
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pears from Hrs. Aldrich started to flow. Hysterics also

pﬁt in their appearance.’ The’sobbiﬁg wife said "No Billy,

you can!t do this to our baby." Tﬂis was understood to mean

that since Mrs. Dyer was not prepared to divorce her husband so

that he coﬁld be freé, Mr. Aldrich shduld not divorce¢ her., If

’Mr; Dyer should one day agandon her owing to the legal impedient

to marry while Mrs. D&er was alive, she Mrs. Aldrich would still

have an opporgunity fo‘réturn to her husband with thé chilg. With

this'pleading, Mrs. Aldrich did not proceed with the divorce. Aﬁ

no timé,thercafter did h2 take any action‘to obtain damages against

his rival Qhether in a divorce procecding 04 in tort in‘an action

for enticement. -

d:. Mrs. Aldrich goes t¢ Ceylon with rtir. Dyer

Infant child Nina is taken vith them,

e o Tgute =

On a date dur{ng the winter of 1936 - 1931, Mrs. Dyer,

'Mrst‘Aldrich and Nina left England for Jeylon. Mrs. Aldrich
‘ probably in 1934,

: _returngd to Englard with Nlna on 2 visit in either 1933 or 193412

."\

//She used to write her husband while shé was in Ceylonm 2:d she

informed him of her forthcoming visit. She stayed in London at

a hotel. Mr. Aldrich met her about twice and sexual intercourse
took place between them., Nina who was then about B%Vto h.years‘old
was presented with a doll_By'Mr. Aldrich. A €eyloncse nursemaid

~accompanied Mrs. Aldrich from Ceylon. Nina was left in England to

attend boarding school. She was put under the care of Mr. & Mrs.

Blyth. When wad” broke out in 1939, Nina was SGnt to South Africa
- - | ‘ . ¢
to continue her schooling. While Nina lived with the Blyths, dr.

Aldrich was not allowed to visit her as it was thought that it

« .. . A [ R I VAN N R 1'6'
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waé~¢heagh%—+ha%—ét was not in her best interest. Bu¢ Mr.

Aldrich kept abreast with her progress through reports

received from Mr. & Mrs, Blyth.

Mr. Aldrich did not pay for the education of Nina; he did not
supply her with any of her needs, Indeed, throughout the childhood

of Nina, she acccpted Mr., Dyer as her father. As far as Nina

was concerned if she was taughf the stanza of Margaret Courtney
entitled "Be kind" which I shall repeat for the purposes of the

record, it did not apply to Mr, Aldrich.

"Be kind to thy father, for when thou wert

young,
Who loved thee so fondly as he?

o Hefcaught the first accents that fell
from thy tongue, “ _
And joined in thy innocent glee."

Perhaps, . Mr, Aldrich would reply - and this appears to
be his stand-by quoting the words of Launcelot:

~

"It is a wise father that knows his own child®

(Merchant of Vénice, Act 2, S~.2).

(e): Nina grows to be famous - marriage and death.

Nina is said to have been very attractive and well

-
)

educated. She was a capaﬁle horse-rider, According to Mr.
iAldrich, shé could have beea described as a "Fairy Tale Princess."
She was twice married to men of substance and acquired a
considerable fortune}through her ma;riages. Her first marriage

was to Baron Heinrich Von Thyssen. By this marriage she acquired

-

-

Swiss citizenship. A decree of divorce having been pronounced in
1956,‘she married Sadruddin son of Aga Khan iz 1957, Tﬁis
\

marriage also ended in divorce but she retained her Swiss

.ococoo.'o)oo.oooc‘l?/
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citizenship. | Nina died in France on the jrd July, 1965
intestate while still retaining her Swiss citizenship and PR
doﬁicile.

Legal arguments and submissions

The submissions put forward by Mr. DaCosta with his
usgdl force and clarity ranged:ovcr a:wide area. Those
propounéed by Dr. ﬁattray were marked with vigour and eloquence.
I hope they will fofgive me if I should attempt to reduce to
. simplicity and to put in my own words rgat I understand the
eontantien of cach of them to be. When tge main arguments ware

being>pu€”}orward ~ and they covered a five ddy period - I was
regarded as being an English judge's;tting in thelstrand to decide
the question:whether, on the fadts, Nina was a2 legitimate or
illegitimate child. Alternatively, I was required to remit the
facts to England, place them beforg an English judge and awai?
WMQ&‘his decision on them. This was and is necessarf, whatever coursc
is adopted, sinpe as I haﬁé glrendy p§inted out the "love affair”
‘between Mrs. Aldrich 2and Mr. Dyers the pregnancy of Mrs., Aldrich
" and the birth of Ning. all took él#ce in'E;gland between 1929.-
1930, None of those facts has’any connection with Jamaiqa.
No Jamaican is involved in the eternal-tfiangle. I believe
that in order to arrive at a satisfactory conclusion on the_
facts @ith the help)of the law, will require ﬁ feat df m?ntal
gymnastics. 30me judges'arc not very sure about this ductring
lﬁf"remission and transmission" of certain facts to a &orcigh

" court when a case comes up before them with a touch of private

international law. - I may be one of them, To ask a judge to

~0 2
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worship at the shrinc of renvoi may be as tricky an invitation

as when Socrates was asked by 2 friend to worship at the temple

of the SGa-god.

Mr, DaCosta's submissions may be summarised as follows:-

o f

(1) The Swiss Court has declared that Mr. Aldrich is the

"legitimateﬁ father of Nina. This declaration is by a

competent Court which was dealing with an administration

action touching the assets of a

-
-

a citizen of Switzerland,

The declaration, in so far as it touches the status of

Nina is binding and should be recognized by the Jamaican

Court.

e

(2) If the question of the paternity of Nina should be re-

opened in Jamaica, then one of two presumptions would

—f P

apply to the facts. They are as follows:

(a) When a child is born of a married wom=n and it is proved

(b)

(3)

that her husband had access to her, it is presumed that
that child is legitimate. The presumption may- only be
rebutted by those who argue to the contrary b& proo?

beyond réasonable doubt that the child is illegitimate.

‘The child being presumed to be legitimate those who

éontest the status must bring proof on a balance of
probabilities that the child is illegitimate.
The only evidence ir the case touching the issue of

legitimacy i# from Mr. Aldrich himsclf. If his evidence

- is accepted, then he is bound to succeed., If his evidence

is rejected he still must succeed since the Attorney

.cio-uo-..co.oo..19/
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General has not produced any evidence ta prove'that

Nina was not a legitimate child,

Dr. Rattray's submissions may be thus summarised:

(1)

(2)

(a)

When Nina was born in England in 1930, Mr. and Mrs,

Aldriech Qgre domiciled in England; Nina's domicil of

- of origin was English, A judgment in rem by a competunt

s A
court binds the world, And a judgment touching the

status of a person is a judgment in rem.

A judgment touching the status of a person may only be

- internationally recognized if the adjudicating court is that

of the country of that persons domilil of origin., Since

Nina's status was not declared by an English Court, the

.
~

dourt in Jamaica should nat reéognize the declaration by
the Swiss ' Court because itvwas_not competeﬁ% in an inter-
national sense to make ani such'adjudication.

In any event, the declaration in Switzerland was made in

proceedings inter partes. But a judgment in proceedings

* between private partics oﬁly binds those parties and -

their privies. | - .
On the facts, there is_evidénce of a strong aﬁd
satisfactory naturé to rebut the prcsumpﬁion that Ninz,
having been born during we&lock, was legitimate. .The
evidence of a strong and satisfactdry nature is pointed

out as follows: . - o ' -

That after Mrs. Aldrich left the home in June 1929,

\

Mr. Aldrich tried to make her pregnant. And if Mrs.

Aldrich was’pregnaht at the time she left her husband in

;.o;...o.‘o.uZO/
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(e)

(d)w

(e)

e 8)

204 R

-~

order that she may find more comfort with Mr. Dyer,

-

it would have been unlikely thater.'Aldriéh was

responsible for the pregnancy.

The subsequent conduct of Mr, Aldrich and Mr, Dyer

after Mrs. Aldrich left hér husband on the second

~occasion indicated that it was more likely tha% Mr. Dyer

[ ]

was the father of the child Mrs. Aldrich was then

‘bearing. .

When Mrs. Aldrich went into the nursing home to be

- confined, Mr, Aldrich did not visit her there although

"he disp}ayed ingenuity in meeting her during pregnancy.
HIn”thé ;;rsing ﬁome, Mrs. Aldricﬂ wds registered-as Mrs.
Dyer.

The child Nina was registered as that of Mr. and Mrs.
Djer and Mr. Dyer was the informant when the infant was

being registered.

There was a wholesale neglect of Nina by Mr. Aldrich

throughout her life, and this is conduct wholly inconsistent

" with that of a father.

-
-

In winding up. his examination of the facts, Dr. Rattray

made certain commentse. I shall record some of them. He said

N

(1)

'among other things:

‘"The motive for bringing this action should be considered

'Tgé'an element in assessing the credibility of Aldrich.

Where there is aAiifetime of total and complete neglect
; , : \

: - _ ;
- of a child by a father and the claim of paternity is

:being asserted b} the father for the purpose of a clain

4/a
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touchingrthe asséts of thut child, the court

must necesgarily consider this factor in assossing

the credibility of the claimant.®
(2)-_ "This case is brought on the background in which Mr..

Aldrich has already inherited over half million pounds

of the cstate in Switzerlznd gnd through the Swiés Court.m
(33 "The assertiéﬁsof‘hldéich that he is the father of Ninn

~are not supported by the external-evidence. There is not
a tittle of evidgnce to support that of Aldrich - on the

background of his evidence - that he is the father."

" Mr, DaCosta in his reply cont.nded that Dr. Rattray's

—

leg&l arguncnt Ecncenning the competency of thé Swiss Court to
prdnounce on the legitimacy of Nina is ingenious but fallacious,
that there has bheen a confusion between choice of jurisdiction and
choice of law., And passing.on to the question of motive fqr
asscrting'paternity, he said this: !

wIf Mr. Aldrich is the father, then he can
assert his paternity and his motive for so
doing is irrelevant. This is = complex
_human problem and Hina's tragoedy was that

she.rece;ved no love from anyZWhere."

I ¢n£irely agree with M;. DaCosfa that this is a human
problem that.I have before me me, I'regafd it as an example of
human action in action. There is nothing called'perfgctbn in human
conduct. for one to go around with a view to discoveriﬁg.some.
perfeétioﬁ anywherc would be.as uséléss an:oxpedition as if hc
were trying to find a dodo, ' 4 g

" The submissions of Dr. Rattray in relation to the

N

2a/
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'judgment of the Swiss Court find their basc on a proposition

which is to be found in the leading text-books on Private

Internation2l Law and in certain dicta in some decided cases.

For example at pages 636 and 637 of Cheshire's Private Inter-

national Law, 8th Edition, the following statements appear;

"The jurisdictionnl elements that must exist before

a foreign judgment in fem can claim recognition in

England arc not difficult to specify, but it is

‘first necessary to approciate the correct meaning

of this species of judgment.,"

The learned suthor then refers to the wqras of Evershed, L.d

(as he then was) in Lazarus - Barlow v. Regent Estates Ltd.

[T94%97 2, AER. 118 at p. 122.

S

1

And with refercnce to the dicta in the‘cases which support the

proposition that it is the court of 2 person's origin which is
| illegitimacy

competent to pronounce on his status, that is, his legitimacy,or Z

Or. Raftnﬁy relied on the language of James and Cotton, L. JJ in

Re Goodmzan's Truét:s,'Zl881 - 57 All E.R. Rep. 1138,

"A judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction
determining the status of a person or thing (as
distinct from the particular intcrest in it or a
party to the litigation); and such a judgment is
conclusive evidence for and against all persons

whether parties, privies or strangers of thc matter

actually decided.

And at p. 637 of the same work the following passage appears.

"A foreign judgment which purports to operate in rem
will not attract extra-territorial .recognition unless
it has been given by a Court internationally compétent

in this respéct.”

This is what Cotton, L.J. said at p.1152.

"If, as in oy Qgénion“is the case, the question

ks ceccocacannsd/)
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whether a person is legitimate depends on the law
of the place where his parents'Qerc domiciléd at
his birth, that is, by his domicil of origin, I
cannot understand on what principle, if he by
%hat law legitimate, he is not legitimate evéry-
where, and I am of opinion that if a child is
legitimate by the law of the country where at the
time of his birth its parents were domiciled, ‘the
“law of England, éﬁ%ﬁé%iin the case of succession
to real estate in England, reéognises 2nd acts on

_the status thus declared by the law of the domicil."

"And at p. 1154, James L.J. said:

*According to that Llaw as recogﬁised, and that eyuity
as practiszd in all other civilised communitieé, the

- status of a person, his legitimac} or illegitimacy,
is to be determincd everywhere by the law of the

country of his origin - the law under which he was

*
>

born,"

Twenty four years earlier, Kindersley V.C. had spoken in the same

o o
‘vein. v
"It appears to me“that on the suthorities applicable
to this question the principle is this, that the
fﬁﬁs legitimacy or illegitimacy of any individual is to be
)

determined by the law of that country which is the
country of his origin. If he is legitimate in hig own

country then, all other civilized countries, at least
all christian countries, reccgnizae him as legitimate

everywhere.,"

In re Don's Estate (1857), & Drew. 194, 197. l . ' \-

 James and Cotton L. JJ, were in the majority decision in

Goodman's Trust which reversed the judgment of Jessel, M.R. In

I

question of the right of a relative of a testatrix

that case, the
td an interost in a lapsed chare under her will arose for
|

The » .
consideration._/_ testatrix had a brother who left England with

the intention of pérmancntly residing in Holland., In Holland a

[1
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~two children of a brother who sﬁrvived her,

w24 o

daughter was‘born out of wedlock as d’resﬁlt of his association
with one Charlotte Sﬁith.‘ After the birfhvof this child (their
four?h), he married Charlotte in lelaqd., By the marriagé this
hth:child along with threc others born in “ngland were legitimated
according to the law of Holland.
The question, thergfore, was fhis:.

Could the éﬁild born in Holland and legitimated in
Holland while her parents were domiciled t@ere, claim under the
will of an English funt as next-of-kin? .
The learned M#ster of the Rolls said ﬁno"‘and’decided the case on

the footing that the word "children" in an English will must be

construed to mean children "lawfully begotten' unless an intention

appeared to the contrary in the will and no such intention did
appeare. The realities in that case « as in the one before me =
- T~ '

must be faced. In Goodman's case the 4th child who was claiming

under her aunt's will was born in 1821; her father died in 1832,

°  But the aunt did not die until 1878 about 46 years after.
- ﬁ‘":k - .

waie aunt died a2 spinster and at the date of her death, she had
neither father nor mother, Srother nor sister; but therc were

. , )
James L.J..hintéd in fhe course of his judgment, £hat it Quuid
be an act of "barbarous insularity" if the English Court held
that this niece was to be regarded as a bastard in England; whgn
in the éountry'where she was born, she was note.

"+ . Suppose Mr. Aldrich had obtained in England or was

able to obtain the declaration which he soughi "that Nina Dyer

~ was legitimate", could the Attorney General or the Administrator

,,.....;.....,,.25/
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General maintain the contentioué which they have put bgfére

me? The‘answer must be in the negative, If this declaratioﬂ
was obtained, w2uld it havevbeen determined "by thezlaw of that
Couﬁtry which is the country of Nina's origin?" The answer

ﬁuét be in the affirmative.v

Is there a difference between a declaration as to legiéimacy
obtained in a competent English:;ourf by ;pplying English Law and

a “declaration obtaindd in a competeﬁt court of a foreign country

- by applying the same. BEnglish Law?

-

Even if I were not to use the strong language of

James L.J. =---- and use a;. epithet much more mild - I would say that

ey

a stfange situation would arise if Mr. Aldrich were to be told, and
 the Court should hold that on the facts it is possible for Niné to
be regarded as legitimate I-r all purposes in Swifzerland where she
was domiciled at the date of death and of which sﬁe Qas a citizen,

but on the same facts and on the same.principle, namely, birth

~“‘dg}‘ing lawful wedlock, in a christian and civilized country - as

uindersley V.C, opined - she is to be regarded as a bast;rd here,
gheré she 1§ft some of her‘property. And a more strange result

is yet to come, ' The universal rule recognized in Private Inter=-
national Law is that in the case 6f an intestacybmovable property
of the deceased ié to be,distributed according fo the law of the.
domicii of the.intesta£e at.the.time 2f his deéth. And the law

of the d;micil ét the time o? death determinés.the class o# persons

to take and the right of representation. See Lynch v. Paraguay
- R N %

Prov.‘vat. 11861 - 227 All E.R. Rep. 934. According to the Swiss

Law, Mr. Aldrich is to take the property of Nina "he being

. L I cecossssb/
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considered az the legitimite father of thg decéasédf"
In so far as thehmovaﬁle pfoperty of the deceased in Jamaica is
congenned, th?reforer that is $1,000, Mr, Aldrich must be admitted
to claim his interest he being the legitimate father of Ninz and

the judgment of the Swiss court may be recognized to that extent.

But in so far as the immovable property i.c. real estate tc the

. extenb of $100,000 is concerned, Mr. Mldrich may not be regarded

-
-

as the legitimate father and any such part of the Swiss judgment
which sayshe is, should be ignorecd. ‘
If an argument is put forward which would lead to such

strange results then something must be wrong some¥here, I shall

e

- show in due course where the fault in the argument of Dr. Rattray

is to be found. A judgment of a court of a foreign country has

-t

] T .

no direct operation in Jamaica but it may be enforced here by
action at common law or under some statute, See for example, the

elaborate provisions of the Judgments (Foreign Reciprocal

Enforcement) Law, Cap. 184, After the foréign judgment has been

- registered, it may be set aside at the instance of the partf
“against whom it is to be enforced, if he can’ show, among other

" things,

"That the courts of the-country of the original court
had no jurisdiction in the circumstances of~the case."
See Sec. 6 (1) (ii) of the Law, (Cap. 184).

All thé.passages in Che;hire and in other text books
felied dn.by Dr, Rattray aée dealinz with é situation Qhere_;
fofeign.judgment }cgiStered in England is sought to be eéforccd
by actiag.' But in this 6§se, Mr. Aldrich is not secking by actioﬁ

to enforce any foreign judgment agzinst anyone. He is merely

s '......-..»._...27/
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seeking a deélaration on the facts which hg'has preéénted and
as a step in the proceeding he-réfefs to the Swiss declaration
alrecady made in his favour. And I entirely agree with Mr.
DaCosta in his view that the cases have not decided that the

only court which is competent to pronounce on the legitimacy of

-

a person is the court of the country of his origin. The facts

in this case, show that the submission of Dr: Rattray in this

-«

respect could not be accepted.
Mr. Aldrich made an attempt to get a declaration from

thé English court but he was faced with 2 legal tcchnicality and

80 he could not succeed, Mr; Aldrich then took the facts of his

a ,
case to a court in Switzerland., Nina wailcitizen of Switzerland

albeit a citizunégxﬂmarriage and she died with her domicil of choice
-there. A éémpotent court, acéording to Swiss Law, pronounced on '
her ligitimacy. Mr. Aldrich now cumes beforc a court in Jamaica.

"Is.he to be told that he should go back to England to get his
e

declaration as to the legitimesy of Nina? He went to that court

already. Is the rule in Privaté International .Law sc strict that

on these special'facts,'the claimant is to be told that the

judgment obtained in Switzerland has no relevance here? I do

not think so. And I adopt, with respect, the words of Donovin,

L.J. in Gray v. Formbsa; Zi96g73 WLR._12#6 at pe 1253,

"But these rules of private international law .
are made for men and women - not the other Wgy
rdﬁhd - and a nice tidy logical perfection can

~ never be achieved. Certainly, elementary
considerations of decency and justice ought
not to be sacrificed in the attempt to achieve it.
if the courts here have, as I think they have,

a residual discretion in these matters, they can be

o 'L,»[? perennan e
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trusted to do whatever the justice cf a particular

cas¢ may require, if that is at all possible."

Without spending too much time on this aspect of the

ﬁatter, I shall refer briefly to the method which the learned .

Judge in Switzerland followed in considering the petiiion of

'

Mr. Aldrich, (An authenticated copy of a true and faithful

translation in English of the orjginhl judgment delivered in the

Italian language, is.at pages 45 - 57 of the judge's bundle).

relevant,

1.

2e
— e
(O -
&,
@

5 (a)

The learned judge proceeded as follows, in so far as is

.

He referred to the relevant Swiss Code which gave him
jurisdicfion "to pronounce on the succession which is

in the issue."

That no fewer than eightecn interested persons (including

-

the petitioner Aldrich) had made themselves known.
"That, however, the judge being under tho obligation to
see to it that the succession be currectly devblved, it

is necessary to examine whether the Petitioner is the right

‘party to the action, that is to say whether he can be

considered as the legitimdte father gf the deceased,"
The judge then referred to "some perplexity" i.e. to the

fact that the deceascd was registered-in the English

Civil Register with the surnaﬁe Dyer and that the English

Judge had expréssed his own lack of jurisdiction'to declare:

"this petitioner to be the legitimate father of the

!

sm - - . )
deceased.” He was of course referring to Crmrod, J.

Touching on the laﬁ, the learned judge referred to Article

8 of the Federal Law to the effect that the civil statug

42D -1 Y
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of persons resident and doﬁiciled - the legitimate
descent is subject to the legislation and jurisdiction
of the place of origin,

"This lattor,’in fact, being that of.the father."
He then cited authority to support this proposition:

“"The Swiss Judge called upon to decide in a succession

L 4

has .
casq[jurisdiction to decide also on the preliminary

- -

question concerning the legitimate descent of the
deceased by the application of the notional law of the
father."

He then referred to the fact that a valid marriage

ol

between Mr. Aldrich and his wife had been proved.

He next examined the circumstances when Mrs., Elsie

.
e

Aldrich (nee Rogers) abandoned the Petitioner in 1929

"in order to conabit with a certain Stanley Dycr and

b

remaining withpuntil his death which occurred in 1945."

The learned judge carefully applicd the English Law;
i.e. preéumption of legitimdcy and cited the latin.
maxim "pater eét aﬁem nuptiac demdns;rant." (he is fhe
father whdm‘the marriage shows), He held that "the
presumption was not destfoyed by the results of the
case," |

Lastly he mentioned that other legitimate heirs,
ac;ording'to Swiss .law, supported the praycer of the
Petitionef. He accordingly.granted éhe déclatation.

With respect, it scems to me that thc reasoning of the

learned judge is impeccable. His logical steps, which he outlined

eevessceses30/
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before he came to his conclusion aré admirable; the legal
principles which he applied to the.faéts are, in my view, very
sound. Indeed, he applied the very rule which Dr. Ratfray
cénténds is applicable, namely, the law of'thercountry of origin
of a person detcrmines his legitimacy ér ill1Zgitimacy. And when
it comes to ﬁhe fﬁcts, the iearnad judgé placed himself briefly

on the English.Bench, he applied the énglish presumption 6f

legitimcay, he then made his decision and "returned" fo Sxitzerland

.with a declaration in favour of Mr., Aldrich.

Mr. DaCosta has a;gued that since the decision of the Swiss
Court is a judgment in rem affecting Nina's status and given by

a competent court of the cbuntry in which she was domiciled at the

o TR

time of her death, that deecision is binding on all the world., And

he has relied on Salvesen v. Austrian Property Administrator,

British subject and domiciled in Scotland went through a form of
marriage in France with an Austrian subject. _The'parties fheg

settled in Germany where they lived as men and wife, The Austrian

-

husband served in the Austrian Army while S lived in Switzerland.

Later both S and the husband resumed living in Germany for about

" 4 years. At the end of this period, the Administrator of Austrian

Property c¢laimed the movable property of S in Scotland on the

ground.that she became an Hustrian national by her marriage in

France. The claim was based on the Treaty of Peace (Aust}ia) Grdar

N

1920, S résisted tﬁé claim on the ground that her marriage in

France was null and void because certain formalities required by

Froneh Law were not observed before the marriage took place. A
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court in Germany declared the marriage null and void. The
question for determinnation was whether the decrce of the German
court was binding on the Scotish Court, so as to prevent the
Administrator from arguing that thé French mnrfiage was valid.
The Cudge of first instance decided the quéstion in favour of S.
On appealj by a‘majority, his judgment»was réversed and thé caéc
was taken to the Housé 6f Lord;. The House df Lords unanimously
reversed the decision of the Appeal Court (First Divisjon) and
restored that of the first instance judgq.b I understand the
ratioﬁale of the decision to Ee this:

For theypurposg of pronouncing upoL theistatus of parties

e

as-ﬁell as for thc purpose of affecting that status, oncfa competent
4

court of the domicil of the partics has made a pronouncement thereon,

the decision iswhinding'and an English Court will not review that

decision. And once it is shown that no substantial injustice,

according to the English notions, has been committed, the foreign

‘“T§jgdgment will be recognized. It is true that in Salvesen's case,

‘the court was dealing with the validity of a marriage.

As fér as I know, the notions df justice and convenience
as observed by the EngliSh Courts in the field of Private Inters
national.Law’accord with oﬁr own.~ Iff therefore, a competent
foreign court having given 2 faif hearing to all intcrested
parties émthaving applied tﬁe correct principles of Law =~ as

is shown in this case, pronounccs on the legitimacy of one of its

- ecitizens, such a pronouncement will be recognized herec. ‘And it

4
t

‘matters not that the declaration touches a preliminary issue in
the case or is one of several issues which the foreign court

’...-....‘.....'.32/
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had to determine, And e¢ven if I am wrong in so holding, that
would not be the end of the mattcer. Despite the conclusion of the
Swiss Judge on the facts, I shall embark on an examination of
(:\y ’ them on my own. Mr. Aldriéh is bound to succeed gf the facts
on wh;ch he relies are accepted. In the alternative even if the
facts are mat acc;ptéd in their entirety, he is still cnatitled tec
succeed if the Attorney Generalﬁis unable to produce evidence or
to point out in the evidence before mé such&facfs of a strong,
, f ; distinct and satisfactory-natﬁre which point, at least on a
(:> balance of probabilities, that Nina was a bastard; i.c. was the
daughter of the wife of the claimant Mr. Alérich by Mr, Dyecre. ‘
Since tﬁé facts before ne have not been challcnge@, the
intervening parties, namely the Attor&gy General and the Administrator
' Géneral must bc taken to have accepted their truth. Their stand

L e e

can be put in the form of a short dialogue between the Attorney

(T» ) General and Mr; Aldrich. 4 .
=AeGe - "Mr. A, is that 2112V
=

Mr. A ﬂYes, and do you have any evidence to show that whét I
have said is not truc?”
. £
AG: No = I have none but your case does not sho&kthat Nina
‘was your daught;r?
(:\ " Mr. A:  "Why not? Tt is a human story you knoQ and you must

‘pemember that .y wife and I used to see cach other even

after shec left me."

N L.

There is a presumption which‘operntes in favour of
. . k'
Mr. Aldrich when the facts arc being examined. And it may be
stated‘in this form ; there is a presumption of legitimacy arising.

""‘f’f"""33/
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from the birth of a child during wedloék vhere it is.shown that
wifc and husband had opportunity of access to e#ch other during
fhe period in which 2 child could be begotten and born in the
course of nature and where it has not bgen péoved that the
husband was impotent. To put it in another form; If a married
.man has access to his wife at all material times and he is:not
impotent, then it is presumed tLat if she becomes pfegnantihe
_is respoﬁsible and ig§ the fathter of any cﬁild sﬁe may deliver.
Any person who wishes to repel the présumption can only succeed
if he produces evidence of a 3atisfactory nature to pepsuade the
tribunal which has to decide the issue, tth sexual intercourse

o

didinot take place at any time when by sﬁch'intercourse the husband
could, according to the laws of natur;, be the father of the
childs And this presumption opgrhtes in‘thc interest of morals
‘and of an orderly sociecty. )

The potency of Mr. Aldrich at the relevant time is not

'"ﬂﬁi? issue, During the cr.ss-ecxamination, he told Dr. Rattray that

he fathered a daughter Sally Ann who was born on the 6th Nofembefg,
1936.. Nina was.then 6 years vld and Mrs. Aldrich was then
iiving in Ceylbn. The mothe; of Sally.Anﬁ is now the second
‘Mrs. Aldrich.

I do not thipk it is neéessary fo examiné all the
authorities which deal with the presumption of legitimacy. When

Mrs. Morris the wife of a surgeon ran away with a male servant

" and subsequently gave birth to a male child while living in

\
\

"undisguised adultery! with him, the questiun arose for decisiun

%

some yearé after,whcther her son was legitimnte, Special facts

- eeeenneanad3l/
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proved in that causec presuaded the House of.Lords to say that
the son was naot legitimate see Morris Ve Davigs 15835 - QZ7
All E.R; Rep,. 270. J
<:> _Séme of the special fﬁcts which I have dectected in the case ére

as follows: !

(1) Mrs. Morris and her husband separated in 1788
and she went ts live with W,A. a male serfant;

(2) 1In 1793, five years aftcr,:she was delivered of -~

male chiid;
<:> | . (3) W,A. took the child to h;s parents who brought
- ;§im up under the surname of W,A,
©" (&) The birth of the child was carefully concealed by
Mfs. Morris and she deunied to her husband that any
~7¢hild had beén born to her; She took an "oathﬂ

to substantiate her dcnial,

(:> . ~ (5) Between 1792 and 1793,.Mr. and Yrs. Horris were

V

living about 15 miles apart and evidence was given,
which the jury discre@ited, that twice duri?g the
year 1792, Mr. and Mrs, Morris were seén togetﬁer
&ining on one occasion and.ﬁéing found in the same
house on'antohér._

(“\ | o 1  .It i; c;éar, therefore, that since the~evidenée of

| the ﬁccess of the husﬁagd to.the wife Qas Ciscreditéd, there
Qas.ho éﬁfficient'material in the case on.whigh the presumption

-

could operate. The conduct of both parfiés Mrs. Morris and W.A.

- L
\

wds consistent with the view that the child born in 1793 was

not lawfully begotten.:

e
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In anothef case, a wife left her husband in May, 1951
and returncd in June 1951, Three days after, she again left
hime In December 1931, the husband presented a petition for
divorce on the ground that his wife had cqmmitted adultery with

one H, at whose house the wife went to livcyin June 1951. The

-

wife gave birth to a child on “Decenbor 22, 1951; and the husband

said it was not his becausec although he and his wife slept in the

same hed until they parted in May - June 1951, he did nost have any

sexual intercourse with his wife zand that he in fact had no inter-

course with his wife after January 29, 19%1. The learned judge
- > ]

T e

who tried the issuc expressed sympathy with thg husband and said
he would have.decided the issuc of ﬁatcrnity in the husband's
favour but for the presumpticn of legitimacy which, on the
facts, was nuﬁ'displaged. The “isappointed husbahd wns caught by
the rule that if wife and husband slee; togethgr or have access to
”%ﬁEEach other during 2ll material time than segunl intcrcourse is
presgmed to have taken place. And if the wife is found tq be
‘_pregnant thereafter ﬁe is presumed to be the father of the child
thé_wifc is bearing. Seec Cotton v. Cotton: Zﬁ§5§72 AER- 165-
'The claimant Aldrich filcdigis procecdings in March 1971. On the
baéis fhdt I am notionally in the Str:ﬁd in England - sitting on
a comfoftable chair - in‘considering the facts, I will have to

note that there has been a change in the law dealingsthe prosump-

. -

tion of legitimacy. This change came effesiive on January 1,

1970. The Family Law Reform Act, 1969, sec. 26 provides as

follows: ‘\ 

437 S 1-)
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- "Any presunption of law as to th:z legitimacy or
illegitimacy of any person may in any civil pro-
cecdings be rcbutted by evidence which shows that
it is wore rprobable than not that that person is
illegitimate or legitimnte, ~ns the case may be,
-and it shall not be necessary to prove that fact
beyond reasonable doubt in order to rebut the
presumption.”
© ~“Mr. Aldrich, who durifg cross-examinstion displayed |
signs of resilicnce, physical strength’and_preparedness which are
remarkable for a septuagennrian, gave this answer to Dr. Rattray.
Q: "In the light of the birth certificate, death certificate,
family certificate, support of thT child by Dyer, your
wife going to live with Dyer from 1929 and their living
e ‘ !
: : I
togcther until Dyer's death in 1945, do you still maintain
that Nina was your child?.
P A _ . ' . H
A: "Yes,"
I shall refer to an examgple of ,the operation of the
_ standard of proof beyond reasonable #oubt and on a balance of
probabilities. The facts of the casec are these:s
In 1937 Mr and Mrs. W were married. A child was born in
-

in 1939. Mr. W joined the armed forces duriﬁg the war and between
disembarkatioﬂ leave in Jupe 1945 and March 1946, he spent several

weekwend leaves with Mrs., W. Mrs. W gave birth to a child on

December 11, 1946 and Mr. W denied the paternity. While Mr. W
war ' ; ' -
was oggservice, a man named B became a lodger at the house of Mrs.

-

W. and a léve affair started between B and Mrs. W, When the

husband was discharged from the forces, he fcound B livingtat the

" house as a lodger. gn 1947, trouble started botween W and his

\

wife. They separafed. Before the separatisn B came in one

- ................37/
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~evening to find Mr. W being quite affectionate to Mrs. W. and

B was annoyed. B ﬁsed words to suggest‘that thé child born
in December 1946 wdsthis Ahd not that of Mr. W. The next ‘
day Mrs; W in the éresence of Mr W and B told'the husband,
"Yes;'and this child on my lap is not yours gifhér."
In 1950, Mr+ W obtained a divorce on the ground of
the wife's adulterly with B but shortly after the decree, Mrs.
W took out a2 summ.ns claiming maintenanc; for herself and the
child V born in 194%6. The husband contested the applicaticn.
Mr. W sw;re that between June 1945 I 5, 1946 he had
intercouife with his wife but he uzred contraceptive.oﬁ thig
issue, the learned trial judge (Barnard J) would have décided
in favour of the husband if ne had te apply the standard of
A
proof on a balance of probabilities. But‘as the law then

stood, by applying the standard of proof beyond all reascnable

doubt, he decided in favour cf thé.wife. See Watson v Watson

The effect of the decision was to hold that the'child was

legitimate in the face of the unchallenged evidence that at
all material times, B waé ﬁaving intercourse with Mrs. W while he
was a lodger at'the house.
My task thereforg, is to decide whether‘on a Salance
of prébabilities, the facts'show that Nina was not legitimate,

And my answer is given without any hesitations To put it at its

| _
lowest, I am satisfied that on a balance of probabilities it has
not been shown that Ninﬁ was a bastard. It means,therefore,
that the presumpti.n of legitimacy has not been repelled =

400000038/'
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she must. be, therefore, as is the position in Switzerland,

" be held to have been legitimate.

What has been related to me is the same old storye. A

wealfhy man allures a younﬂ and attractive wife of a younger

man who is unable to give her the comfort and luxury for which

‘she yearns. But during the initial stages of the romance and

for a reasonable time thereafter she still showers love and

. B ' \
affection on her husband while he is prepared to put up with

.

the sitﬁation; They meef secrctly and Fhe behaves just as if
nothing has happened. She still reclines in the husband's arms
and submits rquily to his édvancés. During those pericds the
ydung hﬁggand puts out évérything, physically or otherwise in
‘order to bring her back intc his fold. But the allurement of 2
better life elswhere where the older man has cstablished himself

from the immediate reach of his wifc is too much. The y.ung wife

stays away and eventually follows her' wealthy lover to another

‘uﬁﬁ>part of the globe., In every move z2nd so as to keep inqﬁisitive

tonéues silent and ty add an air of respectability and acceptance

to the asscciation - she and her elderly lover pose as gan and

-

wife and she produées the baby of her real husband as the

M.

; product of the union between herself and her lover. But thatababy

is not that of her lover, is a secret kept between herself and
her real husband. Mrs. Aldrich may not have displayed the

initialfobstihacy and craft of a Penelope nor the comstancy and

‘fidelity of a falpurnia. But within her bregst she still had

t
i

fhat tender passion for hor husband and she nursed this feeling-

even éftér she left Enéland for Ceylon. She informed her

430
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husband of her forthcoming visit to England in 1934 and snter-

Py

tained him in the stylc and fashion of a wifé when they met
at her hotel in London. It is said that women have more
<:>.. ' heart and more imagination than men.
The evidence is clear that Mr. Aldrich did not supnort

- his daughter, he did not pay for anything necessary ffr her

upbringing. Another man may have reacted tu the situation
- differently but it does not follow that bicause A would not have
behaved as B under the same circumstances, A's story cannot be

<:> . believed and that no credit shuuld be given for what he has

disclosed and for the motive which appeared to have influcnced his *

P

~conduct. There is an 01d “nglish proverb which states:

"We may give advice, but we cannot give conduct."

Whether the facts in this case lend support t: the truth of that

proverb, I am not at present, prepared to express an opinion. ot

¥ TRy

(:) o Mr. Aldrich is entitled t..the declaration which he secks.

4Vw%§?riv;te Iﬂternational Law has itg perplexities. What the court
of one country may accept or recognize on a given set of £icts
- ‘may have a different iesult in the court oj'another countrye.
Serious attempts hﬁve been~m;de, particularly since the end of
World War 2, fo have sbﬁe unification in certain areas where a
(:> - | : ~conflict Zaa previously existed.

' \, ' In the world o2f to~day where therc is so much movement

of people.from one country to anbther, any attempt to have as

much unification as possible in the rules of Private Internationzl

Law should be encouraged. Jamaica should be in the vanguard of

\

c, . N ’.\ N
those countries secking some¢ order, agreement and lesscning of

-....,.-c.-o-""O/
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conflict in the field of Private _Intern'ationﬁlkLaw.A I shall
now summarise tHeireasons which make me concludelthat the -

<:>; , c¢laimant is ontitled to the declar;tion %n the ameﬁded notice
of motion.
They afe as foll&ws{

(1) Nina was declared:fo be legitimate by a competent
Gourt in Switzerland of which‘sheywas a Citizen
and where she was domiciled when she died on
July 3, 1965;

 (2) The learned judge in Switzerland applicd the law

of:ﬁer domicii of origin i.e. English law, in
examining the facts 2and béfore hé declared tﬁnt she
was iegitimate, The judgment should, therefore, be

- R
recogniz=ed here, ‘56
(3) It would be unwise for a court in Jamaica by its 4

decision to say, in effect, that in the circumstinces,

Nina may be regarded as legitimate in Switzerland

but a bastard here.

-

(%) 'It would be unwisc for the cou;t to éay in effect
that in solfar'as fhe movable pbrti@n of thé
property in Jdmaica of the deceased is concerned shu
may be regarded as legitimate'énd to this'extanf
the Swiss declaration is good but in so far'as the

immovable property i.s. the real gstate 1s concerned,
. to be |

‘she is/regarded as a bastard -wnd to this extont the

Swiss declafation is bd.

: ’ ..‘.0.;0...41
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(5) On fhe facts, the prc#umption of legitimacy of
Nina attaghes itself; If this presumption is fu
<:> ' : ' - be repelled by proof beyond reasonnble'doubt,
I hold that the Attorney General and the
_Admipistfator General have fﬁiled in their atteompt
to do so. On the other hand, if their att;mpf would
meet with‘success if I apply the standard uf-proof
on "Félance of probabilities", z2gain I find thd£
<:> ‘ _ they havc fniled.
 (6) I have already made the point iﬁ.(h) above but I
e shéﬁld, with respect record and adapt the words
)of Lord Brougham in Birtjwhistle v. Vardill,.(1835)
2 CL. & Fin 571 at p. 595, £ £R wye
g
- "Phat a man may be a bastard in one country and legitimzte
in another scems of itéelf 2 strong position to affirm;

<:>' - ‘ : but more staggering is it when,it is followed up?#his

other, that in one 2nd the same country he is to be

N regarded as a bastard when he comes into one court to
claim an estate in 1land, and legitimate when he resorts
to another to obtain personnl succession.”

(7) Private International Law is mot the same in all
countries. Several attempts have been made over
 the past 25 years to unify certain rules. Jamaica
(;) o ' " should do nothing unreasonabLy 0 cause a conflict

in an atteumpt to solve conflicts.

This case,as I have said earlier, has raised some -

L

interesting points in the field of Private International Law.

A visitor to our shores is interested to know what our law is if

"hhe'should own real and éersonal estate here and aaould subscquently
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return to his ﬁountry or to the cguntry of his domicil where
he is regzrded a2s of ;egitimate extraction. Whnt would the
qourt in Jamaica decide in rélation to his property here

if he should die abroad intestate or if he should die partly

~testate an. partly intestute? I hope, with the hclp of the

able arguments of Mr. DaCosta =znd Dr. Rattray, some light"hds

been given wherc uncertainty or darkness existed beforc.

The ..-crney General 2nd the Administrator General

are entitled to their custs sut of the estate and I order

-

accordingly.
o] P~ .
U.N. PARNELL
(Puisne Judge)
ﬂ@$§.




